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Strategic and Directors' Report

Strategic Report

The Directors present their Strategic and Directors' report on the affairs of the Company, together with the audited financial
statements and Auditor's Report for the year ended 31 December 2021, with comparatives for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The purpose of the Strategic Report is to inform members of the Company and to help them assess how the Directors have
performed their duty to promote the success of the Company for the benefit of its members as a whole under Section 172 of the
Companies Act 2006 (duty to promote the success of the Company).

Business review and principal activities

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Sky UK Limited (the immediate parent company), which itself is wholly-owned by
Sky Limited (together with its subsidiaries the "Sky Group" or "Group") The Company is ultimately controlled by Comcast
Corporation ("Comcast") and operates together with Comcast's other subsidiaries as a part of Comcast Group.

There have not been any significant changes in the Company's activities in the year under review. The Directors are not aware, at
the date of this report, of any likely major changes in the Company's activities in the next year.

The Company's principal activities are to provide support services (including conditional access, which is the technical process of
ensuring encryption of our broadcasted channels, and subscriber management services) and to act as an agent for the
direct-to-home ("DTH") pay TV, broadband, telephony and mobile business of its parent company Sky UK Limited. The Company
also operates the Irish branch of the Group, operating pay television, broadband and telephony services in Ireland.

Financial Review and Dividends

In the prior year, the Company's Athena Court Property Unit Trust subsidiary was wound down. The Company received a final
distribution of £nil (2020: £9 million) from its investment in Athena Court Property Unit Trust. In the prior year, the Company's
remaining investment in Athena Court Property Unit Trust was impaired resulting in a charge of £10 million in the income
statement.

The audited financial statements for the year are set out on pages 14 to 50. The profit after tax for the year was £42 million (2020:
£74 million). The Company's shareholder's equity is £850 million which is higher than at the prior year end (2020: £785 million) and
is primarily due to profit for year and hedging reserves movement.

The Directors do not recommend a payment of a dividend (2020: no dividend).

Key performance indicators (KPIs)

The Sky Group manages its operations on a divisional basis. For this reason, the Company's Directors believe that further key
performance indicators for the Company are not necessary or appropriate for an understanding of the development, performance
or position of the Company. The results of the Company are included in the KPIs of Comcast, the ultimate controlling party.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The principal risks facing the Company are liquidity risk, credit risk and foreign exchange rate risk, which is mainly associated with
intercompany balances, subscription revenue and purchases which are Euro denominated. The intercompany balances of the
Company are detailed in notes 19 and 20.

The Directors do not believe the Company is exposed to significant cash flow risk or price risk.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company's activities expose it to a number of financial risks including credit risk, liquidity risk and foreign exchange risk. The
use of financial derivatives is governed by the Group's treasury policy approved by the Comcast's Audit Committee and Board of
Directors, which provide written principles on the use of financial derivatives to manage these risks. The Company does not use
derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes. Refer to note 24 for further information.

Foreign exchange risk

The Company's activities expose it to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates. The Company uses foreign
exchange forward contracts to hedge these exposures. Refer to note 24 for further information.

Credit risk

The Company relies on the Group Treasury function to manage its liquidity and ensure that sufficient funds are available for
ongoing operations and future developments. The Company currently has access to a cash pooling arrangement and a £6 billion
revolving credit facility with Comcast Corporation which is due to expire in 2027. The Company benefits from this liquidity through
intra-group facilities and loans.
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Strategic and Directors' Report (continued)
Liquidity risk

The balance sheet of the Company includes intercompany balances. The Company is therefore exposed to credit risk on these
balances. The intercompany balances of the Company are detailed in notes 19 and 20. Given the amount and nature of the
receivables balance, no allowance account has been made under IFRS 9, and there has been no write-off during the year.

Legislation and Regulation risk

U.K. Exit from the European Union

The telecommunications and media regulatory framework applicable to the Company's business is subject to greater uncertainty as
a result of the United Kingdom's withdrawal from the European Union. In 2021, the U.K. government signalled its intention of
moving away from the E.U.'s approach in a number of policy areas, increasing the possibility of greater divergence between the
regulation of U.K. businesses and other European businesses over time. We are not able to predict the extent of any such
divergence at this point in time.

Within the Irish branch we have implemented additional compliance checks to ensure products placed on UK or ROI markets
comply with the relevant legislations / regulations. We have opened a warehouse in Dublin to supply product manufactured in the
EU which incurs duty and ensured no products are moving across the NI:ROI borders. Extra costs have been incurred due to extra
administration producing / managing customs clearance between the UK and ROI. To date, we are not aware of any significant
changes to contracts or pricing from a Sky Ireland perspective.

Impacts of COVID-19

COVID-19 and measures taken to prevent its spread across the globe have impacted the Company's businesses in a number of
ways, affecting the comparability of periods included in this report. The Directors expect the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic will
continue to adversely impact results of operations over the near to medium term, although the extent of such impact will depend on
restrictive governmental measures, global economic conditions and consumer behaviour.



5 SKY SUBSCRIBERS SERVICES LIMITED

Strategic and Directors' Report (continued)
Corporate Governance Statement

Code of conduct

The Company is ultimately controlled by Comcast and operates together with Comcast's other subsidiaries as part of the Comcast
Group. Comcast's Board of Directors is responsible for establishing corporate governance practices and policies for the Comcast
Group. The Company has adopted the Comcast Code of Conduct, which is applicable to the whole Sky Group, and upholds the
framework that stands for Comcast's ethos and the way it operates. Specifics of the Code are available at
https://www.cmcsa.com/corporate-governance.

The Code of Conduct sets out the four core values that the Comcast Group is guided by: an entrepreneurial spirit; doing the right
thing and acting with integrity; having respect for each other and giving back. It explains how these principles are put into practice
within the Comcast Group of companies.

Sky employees also receive their own "Ways of Working" manual which details its values as a business and sets employee
behavioural expectations. The Sky Group's policies may be found at https://www.skygroup.sky/documents-policies.

The Directors believe that the Comcast Code of Conduct, Sky's Ways of Working and the corporate governance arrangements
described below represent the primary areas of the Company's corporate governance framework given that it operates as a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Comcast Corporation. As a result, the Directors decided not to formally adopt a recognised code of
corporate governance.

The Board

The Company's board (the "Board") is comprised of four directors. The size, structure and composition of the Board is appropriate
to meet the Company's strategic needs and challenges and reflects a balance in depth of skills and experience to promote effective
decision making. The Directors did not receive remuneration for their role as statutory directors of the Company during the year
because they are employees who receive remuneration for their employment with the Sky Group or Comcast Group.

Director Responsibilities

The Company's embedded operating framework within the Comcast Group and Sky Group sets out the rules, policies and
delegations of authority with which the Company complies. Clear lines of accountability and responsibility have been established to
support decision making.

The Company delegates authority of day-to-day management to senior executives and engages leadership to set, approve and
oversee the execution of the Company's and the Sky Group's business strategy. The Company follows Sky's Contract Standards
and Approval Policies for approving contracts which reserves certain matters for Sky and/or Comcast. In some circumstances
additional approvals from specific Sky or Comcast personnel are required. The Board meets on an ad hoc basis to consider the
Company's activities and to review and approve strategic and other key decisions.

Opportunities & Risks

To promote the long-term sustainable success of the Sky Group, Sky seeks to identify and capitalise on a broad range of
opportunities whilst also mitigating risk. Sky has a formal risk management framework embedded within the business to support the
identification and management of risk across the Sky Group. There is an ongoing monitoring process which is operated by the Sky
Group risk team and supported by senior management across the Group, to identify and report on significant changes or new risks.
The Sky Group, Risk and Assurance function assists the business to develop risk registers and consolidates these to support both
Sky's day-to-day approach to risk and to form part of Comcast's year end risk requirements.

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting

We have been reporting our carbon footprint since 2005/6. In 2006 we decided to extend our environmental management
programme to become carbon neutral. Tackling climate change was becoming more and more important and we chose to take a
lead in reducing and offsetting emissions.

https://www.skygroup.sky/documents-policies
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Strategic and Directors' Report (continued)
Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (continued)

Sky follows three steps to become carbon neutral:

 Measure - we calculate our greenhouse gas emissions at the end of each financial year by calculating our Scope 1 and 2
CO2e emissions (premises, company owned vehicles and refrigerant use) and Scope 3 emissions including business
travel and waste sent to landfill.

 Reduce - we are committed to avoiding and reducing our emissions before offsetting to achieve our carbon neutral status.
Performance against our targets can be reviewed in our Bigger Picture Impact Report.

 Offset - each year we offset our location-based Scope 1 and 2 emissions and selected Scope 3 emissions to make Sky a
CarbonNeutral® Company across our operations. Carbon offsetting is compensating for your own, unavoidable emissions
by financing an emission reduction project elsewhere. That finance purchases carbon credits, equivalent to one tonne of
CO2 each, which the emission reduction projects generate. These projects are audited by an independent third party.

During the prior-year, to further reduce our Scope 1 and 2 emissions, Sky replaced diesel generator fuel with low carbon HVO at
three main sites and optimised cooling at our technical sites amongst other initiatives to maximise energy efficiency.

We verify our carbon neutral result by following the CarbonNeutral® Protocol, the global standard for carbon neutral programmes,
to ensure our claim is robust and credible. Our CarbonNeutral® certification, awarded by a third party, provides independent
assurance of our climate action.

Further information including a detailed breakdown of our Scopes 1, 2 and 3 emissions, our progress towards net zero carbon by
2030 and historic reporting can be found in our annual impact reports at https://www.skygroup.sky/reports.

2021 2020
UK and
Ireland Sky Group UK and

Ireland Sky Group

Carbon Intensity
Revenue (£m) 10,891 14,744 9,873 14,464
Carbon intensity (Total scopes 1 and 2 (location-based)
tCO2e/£m revenue 5.67 6.06 6.14 6.16
Carbon Emissions (tCO2e)
Scope 1 (Fuel combustion and operation of facilities) 21,657 38,324 19,929 36,448
Scope 2 (market-based purchased energy) 3,038 8,149 7,737 21,577
Total Scope 1 and Scope 2 (market-based purchased energy) 24,695 46,473 27,666 58,025
Scope 2 (location-based purchased energy) 40,090 51,055 40,648 52,675
Total Scope 1 and Scope 2 (location-based purchased energy) 61,747 89,379 60,577 89,123
Total Energy consumption Scope 1 and Scope 2 (kWh) 280,703,720 400,474,465 261,589,964 382,428,211
Carbon Emissions (Scope 3 tCO2e)
Scope 3 (Business travel in non-company vehicles) 977 1,095 1,311 1,436

Figures in the provided table are reflecting Sky Group and UK and Ireland only (the level at which the figures are monitored) and
therefore will not agree to the revenue reported in these financial statements.

Methodology

We calculate our greenhouse gas emissions in carbon dioxide equivalent (CO2e) for Scopes 1 and 2 according to the Greenhouse
Gas Protocol Corporate Standard and associated guidance. We use the emission factors from the latest UK Government
(DEFRA/BEIS) Greenhouse Gas Conversion Factors for Company Reporting (2021), IEA Statistics Data Service: Emission Factors
(2021 edition) and the Association of Issuing Bodies: Version 1.0 2020 European Residual Mixes (2021 edition). Data for UK &
Ireland includes Sky's Joint Ventures, small international offices and news bureaux and business activities in Portugal.

Our total gross CO2e emissions include all Scope 1 and Scope 2 location-based greenhouse gas emissions; and our market-based
emissions are those remaining after emissions factors from contractual instruments have been applied. Our energy providers
retain, on our behalf, the Guarantees of Origin (GOs) and Renewable Energy Guarantee of Origin (REGOs). In addition, we offset
our total gross emissions, including Scope 1, location-based Scope 2 and selected Scope 3 emissions, through the purchase of
Voluntary Carbon Standard offsets. Our Scope 1 & 2 carbon emissions data and carbon intensity are subject to an annual
independent assurance review, the results of which are published alongside our annual impact report.

For our full basis of reporting, please see our website https://www.skygroup.sky/documents-policies.

https://www.skygroup.sky/reports
https://www.skygroup.sky/documents-policies
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Strategic and Directors' Report (continued)
Corporate Governance Statement (continued)

S172 Statement

Under section 172(1) of the Companies Act 2006 ("Section 172"), the Directors must act in a way that they consider, in good faith,
would most likely promote the success of the Company for the benefit of its members as a whole and in doing so have regard
(amongst other matters) to:

 the likely consequences of any decision in the long term

 the interests of the Company's employees

 the need to foster the Company's business relationships with suppliers, customers and others

 the impact of the Company's operations on the community and the environment

 the desirability of the Company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct

 the need to act fairly between members of the Company.

The Directors of the Company, both individually and collectively, consider that they have discharged their duties under Section 172
whilst considering the factors listed above in the decisions made during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Due to the breadth and extent of stakeholders and the size of the Sky Group as a whole, stakeholder engagement often takes
place at an operational, country or Group level for Sky Group as well as Comcast, rather than at an individual company level.
Decisions made by the Directors consider the Group's strategic goals and are consistent with Comcast's Code of Conduct and
made in pursuit of promoting the success of the Company and its members as a whole. Key decisions made at the individual
Company level include approving the annual report and financial statements and approving dividend distributions in board
meetings, among others. The dividend policy applicable to each entity in Sky Group is governed by decisions made at a Group
level.

Our Employees

We communicate with our employees frequently and conduct employee engagement surveys. The Directors recognise that
employees are central to our success. We celebrate diversity, equity and inclusion and seek to have a workforce that is inclusive
and reflective of the diverse range of our customers and modern society.

The Company is proud of our community of volunteer employee networks who support our commitment to diversity and inclusion
and help drive change. The Company is committed to equal opportunities in employment and recruitment and promoting the
diversity of our workforce in respect of, among others, disability, race, gender, age, sexual orientation, pregnancy, marital status or
fixed or part time status. We aim to ensure a transparent, professional working environment where employees treat each other with
respect and in which all employment-related decisions (from recruitment through to career development and progression) are
based on the individual's qualifications, ability, performance, skills and potential. Applications for employment by anyone with a
physical or mental impairment are always fully considered, bearing in mind the abilities of the applicant concerned. For members of
staff with a disability, or who become disabled during employment, every effort is made to ensure that their employment with the
Group continues and that appropriate adjustments are considered and support provided, in line with our reasonable adjustment
policy. In the event that a disabled employee is unable to continue in their current role after considering the adjustments available,
we have a redeployment policy and process to provide support to help the employee secure an alternative role. It is the policy of
the Sky Group and the Company that the training, career development and promotion of disabled persons should, as far as
possible, be equal to that of other employees.

Today@Sky is Sky Group's employee intranet which publishes, daily online, articles of national importance, local company news
and matters of concern to employees and the Company alike. It is a dynamic resource widely used and regarded and easily
provides an opportunity for feedback and comment from employees. The Company encourages a culture of open communication
and reporting, and the Sky Listens Programme (along with the Comcast NBCUniversal Listens Programme) provides several
available channels to raise concerns without fear of retaliation. People are encouraged to speak up using whichever reporting
option they feel most comfortable with, and anyone may submit a report via the Sky Listens Helpline or Web Portal. We provide
details on how to speak up on Today@Sky, along with company policies and guides including the Comcast Code of Conduct and
Sky's Ways of Working.

The average monthly number of employees subject to contracts of service employed by the Company during the year was 10,015
(2020: 9,863).
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Strategic and Directors' Report (continued)
Corporate Governance Statement (continued)

Our Partners

As part of the Comcast Group we understand the need to foster good relationships with our suppliers and our customers. We seek
to offer the very best service to our customers. We use the highest editorial standards and have strong privacy protections. Our
products are safe, easy and enjoyable to use. We seek to build successful long-term relationships with our partners. A critical part
of doing business is partnering with others and we believe that partnerships are built on trust and mutual advantage. We interact
honestly and with integrity in the marketplace and we expect our business partners to do the same.

We conduct an annual Human Rights Risk Assessment using our tool which brings together risk assessments from across the
business. We conduct supplier engagement and pre-contract audits with high-risk suppliers. We provide training and support to
suppliers to make improvements and are guided by our victim-centred Response Protocol for incidents raised with possible
indicators of modern slavery. Our Human Rights Policy is informed by our risk assessment. We monitor outcomes of human rights
due diligence aligned to our policy to understand the effectiveness of our policy.

We expect our suppliers and business partners to act ethically and share in our commitment to operate with integrity and in
accordance with applicable laws and regulations, as set forth in our Code of Conduct for Suppliers and Business Partners,
available here: https://corporate.comcast.com/impact/values-integrity/integrity/our-suppliers-and-business-partners.

Comcast's annual Statement on Modern Slavery and Supply Chain Values and Sky's Modern Slavery Update provide more
information on Sky's approach to understanding and addressing the risks of modern slavery, and conducting human rights due
diligence.

Our Communities

As part of the Comcast Group, a global media and technology company, we are committed to using the power of our platforms, our
people and our reach to create positive change and a more equitable society. By supporting local communities, our teammates,
and our planet we can help create a world of open possibilities so that together we can build a future that benefits generations to
come. We are focusing our efforts in the following areas:

 Digital Equity - by helping people access the latest resources, skills and the tools they need to succeed in an increasingly
digital world;

 Diversity, Equity and Inclusion - by creating a truly diverse and equitable company and society;

 Environment - by shaping a sustainable future by improving our environmental impact; and

 Value and Integrity - by fostering a company culture built on integrity and respect. Our values and principles guide
everything we do.

Members

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Sky UK Limited and is part of the Sky Group. The duties of the Directors are
exercised in a way that is most likely to promote the success of the Company and Sky as a whole, while having regard to factors
outlined in Section 172.

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by

C Smith
Director

Grant Way
Isleworth
Middlesex
TW7 5QD

Date:16 June 2022
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Strategic and Directors' Report (continued)

Directors' Report

The Directors present their annual report, together with the financial statements and auditor's report. The Directors who served
during the year are shown on page 2.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend in the current year (2020: £nil).

The Company has chosen, in accordance with section 414C(11) of Companies Act 2006, to include such matters of strategic
importance to the Company in the Strategic Report which otherwise would be required to be disclosed in the Directors' report.

Going concern

The Company's business activities together with the factors likely to affect its future development and performance are set out in
the Business Review. The Strategic Report details the financial position of the Company, as well as the Company's objectives and
policies, and details of its key exposures to risk.

Given the integrated nature of the Group's financial planning and treasury functions, the impact of COVID-19 on the Company's
operations and funding requirements has been assessed at the Group level. The Directors expect that the businesses will continue
to generate adequate cash flow from operating activities and believe that these cash flows, together with the Company's existing
cash, cash equivalents and investments, and available borrowings under its existing credit facilities, including the £6 billion
revolving credit facility with Comcast, will be sufficient for the Company to meet its current and long-term liquidity and capital
requirements.

The Company is in a net current liability position. However, the Company has received confirmation that Comcast intends to
support the Company for a period of at least 12 months from the date of signing of these financial statements.

As a result, after making enquiries, the Directors have formed a judgement at the time of approving the financial statements that
the Company will have access to adequate resources to continue in existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, they continue
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Auditor

In accordance with the provisions of Section 418 of the Companies Act 2006, each of the persons who are Directors of the
Company at the date of approval of this report confirms that:

 so far as the Director is aware, there is no relevant audit information (as defined in the Companies Act 2006) of which the
Company's auditor is unaware; and

 the Director has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a Director to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
information (as defined) and to establish that the Company's auditor is aware of that information.

Deloitte LLP have expressed their willingness to continue as auditor and a resolution to reappoint them was approved by the Board
of Directors on 16 June 2022.

Approved by the Board and signed on their behalf by:

C Smith
Director

Grant Way
Isleworth
Middlesex
TW7 5QD

16 June 2022
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Directors' responsibilities statement

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors are
required to prepare the financial statements in accordance with international accounting standards in conformity with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006. The financial statements also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards as
issued by the IASB. Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that year.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are required to:

 select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

 make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

 state whether International Financial Reporting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

 prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the company will
continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and enable them to ensure
that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the
Company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may
differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.
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Auditor's Report
Independent auditor's report to the members of Sky Subscribers Services Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements of Sky Subscribers Services Limited (the 'company'):

 give a true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 December 2021 and of its profit for the year then
ended;

 have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom adopted international accounting standards and
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB);
and

 have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements which comprise:

 the income statement;

 the statement of comprehensive income;

 the balance sheet;

 the statement of changes in equity;

 the cash flow statement;

 the related notes 1 to 31.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom adopted 
international accounting standards and IFRSs as issued by the IASB.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
section of our report.

We are independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council's (the 'FRC's') Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the 
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Our evaluation of the directors' assessment of the company's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting 
included:

 obtaining an understanding of management's process for monitoring cash requirements for the company and for Sky
Group;

 inspecting the letter of support obtained by management from Comcast Corporation, the ultimate parent, and evaluating
the intent and ability to provide that support; and

 considering contradictory evidence for the appropriateness of the basis of preparation.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that,
individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the company's ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least
twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of
this report.
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Auditor's Report (continued)
Independent auditor's report to the members of Sky UK Limited (continued)

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor's
report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information contained within the annual report. Our opinion on the
financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives
rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors' responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC’s website at:
http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with our
responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our
procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below.

We considered the nature of the company's industry and its control environment, and reviewed the company's documentation of
their policies and procedures relating to fraud and compliance with laws and regulations. We also enquired of management and
internal audit about their own identification and assessment of the risks of irregularities.

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that the company operates in, and identified the key laws
and regulations that:

 had a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. These included
UK Companies Act and tax legislation; and

 do not have a direct effect on the financial statements but compliance with which may be fundamental to the company's
ability to operate or to avoid a material penalty. These included Employment Law, the Irish Communications Regulation
Act 2002, the Privacy and Electronic Communications Regulations 2003, the Communications Act 2003, the Broadcasting
Act 1990, the Data Protection Act 2018 and the Bribery Act 2010.

We discussed among the audit engagement team including relevant internal specialists such as tax, and IT industry specialists
regarding the opportunities and incentives that may exist within the organisation for fraud and how and where fraud might occur in
the financial statements.

As a result of performing the above, we identified the greatest potential for fraud in revenue recognition in relation to manual
adjustments to the revenue profile. We performed specific procedures to address this risk through:

 performing walkthroughs and tests of controls to confirm our understanding of the process by which revenue is calculated
by the relevant billing systems and how manual adjustments are posted;

 understanding the nature of the adjustments and resulting journals that are made to the system-based profile; and

 vouching a sample of these journals to sufficient, appropriate audit evidence.
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Auditor's Report (continued)
Independent auditor's report to the members of Sky Subscribers Services Limited (continued)

Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud (continued)

In common with all audits under ISAs (UK), we are also required to perform specific procedures to respond to the risk of
management override. In addressing the risk of fraud through management override of controls, we tested the appropriateness of
journal entries and other adjustments; assessed whether the judgements made in making accounting estimates are indicative of a
potential bias; and evaluated the business rationale of any significant transactions that are unusual or outside the normal course of
business.

In addition to the above, our procedures to respond to the risks identified included the following:

 reviewing financial statement disclosures by testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance with provisions of
relevant laws and regulations described as having a direct effect on the financial statements;

 performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may indicate risks of material
misstatement due to fraud;

 enquiring of management, internal audit and in-house legal counsel concerning actual and potential litigation and claims,
and instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations; and

 reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance, and reviewing internal audit reports.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

 the information given in the strategic report and the directors' report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

 the strategic report and the directors' report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have
not identified any material misstatements in the strategic report and the directors' report.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report in respect of the following matters if, in our opinion:

 adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches
not visited by us; or

 the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

 certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

 we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 
2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's members those matters we are required to 
state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume 
responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for 
the opinions we have formed.

Jon Young FCA, (Senior statutory auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Statutory Auditor
London, United Kingdom
17 June 2022



14 SKY SUBSCRIBERS SERVICES LIMITED

Income statement
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Notes 2021 2020
£m £m

Revenue 3 1,047 1,064
Operating expense 4 (998) (978)

─────── ───────
Operating profit 49 86

─────── ───────
Investment income 5 - 9
Finance (cost)/income 6 - 2
Net losses on investments 7 - (10)

─────── ───────
Profit before tax 8 49 87

─────── ───────
Tax 12 (7) (13)

─────── ───────
Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholder 42 74

═══════ ═══════

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this Income Statement.

All recognised gains and losses for both the current financial year and the previous financial year arise from continuing operations.



15 SKY SUBSCRIBERS SERVICES LIMITED

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Notes 2021 2020
£m £m

Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholder 42 74
Other comprehensive income
Amounts recognised directly in equity that may subsequently be recycled to the
income statement
Gain/(loss) on cash flow hedges 24 26 (27)
Tax charge on cash flow hedges 12 (3) 3

─────── ───────
23 (24)

─────── ───────
Amounts reclassified and reported in the income statement
Loss/(gain) on cash flow hedges 24 - (5)
Tax charge on cash flow hedges 12 - 1

─────── ───────
- (4)

─────── ───────
Other comprehensive profit/(loss) for the year (net of tax) 23 (28)

─────── ───────
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to equity shareholder 65 46

═══════ ═══════

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this Statement of Comprehensive Income.

All results relate to continuing operations.



16 SKY SUBSCRIBERS SERVICES LIMITED

Balance Sheet
As at 31 December 2021

Restated
(note 31)

Restated
(note 31)

  Notes 2021 2020 2019
    £m £m £m
Non-current assets      
Intangible assets 13 163 181 200
Property, plant and equipment 14 27 30 28
Right-of-use assets 15 20 29 -
Investment in subsidiaries 16 - - 8
Deferred tax assets 17 5 6 2
Cost to obtain customer contracts 18 4 3 6
Costs-to-fulfil customer contract 1 2 -
Trade and other receivables 19 1,082 1,138 1,192
Derivative financial assets 23 3 1 -

─────── ─────── ───────
Total non-current assets 1,305 1,390 1,436

─────── ─────── ───────
Current assets
Inventories - - 1
Trade and other receivables 19 251 250 103
Cash and cash equivalents 19 19 8
Derivative financial assets 23 8 - 18

─────── ─────── ───────
Total current assets   278 269 130

─────── ─────── ───────
Total assets   1,583 1,659 1.566

═══════ ═══════ ═══════
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 20 685 800 803
Lease liabilities 22 4 5 2
Provisions 21 18 21 14
Derivative financial liabilities 23 - 11 -

─────── ─────── ───────
Total current liabilities 707 837 819

─────── ─────── ───────
Net current liabilities (429) (568) (689)

═══════ ═══════ ═══════



17 SKY SUBSCRIBERS SERVICES LIMITED

Balance Sheet (continued)
As at 31 December 2021

Restated
(note 31)

Restated
(note 31)

Notes 2021 2020 2019
£m £m £m

Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables 20 - 3 4
Lease liabilities 22 20 24 -
Provisions 21 6 6 4
Derivative financial liabilities 23 - 4 -

─────── ─────── ───────
Total non-current liabilities 26 37 8

─────── ─────── ───────
Total liabilities 733 874 827

═══════ ═══════ ═══════

Share capital 25 - - -
Share premium 26 150 150 150
Reserves 26 700 635 589

─────── ─────── ───────
Total equity attributable to equity shareholder 26 850 785 739

─────── ─────── ───────
Total liabilities and shareholder's equity 1,583 1,659 1,566

═══════ ═══════ ═══════

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this Balance Sheet.

The financial statements of Sky Subscribers Services Limited, registered number 02340150 were approved by the Board of
Directors on 16 June 2022 and were signed on its behalf by:

C Smith
Director

16 June 2022



18 SKY SUBSCRIBERS SERVICES LIMITED

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Share
capital

Share
premium

Hedging
reserve

Retained
earnings

Total
shareholder’s

equity
£m £m £m £m £m

At 1 January 2020 - 150 15 574 739
Profit for the year - - - 74 74
Losses on cash flow hedges (see note 24) - - (28) - (28)

─────── ─────── ─────── ─────── ───────
Total other comprehensive loss for the year - - (28) - (28)

─────── ─────── ─────── ─────── ───────
Total comprehensive income for the year - - (28) 74 46

─────── ─────── ─────── ─────── ───────
At 31 December 2020 - 150 (13) 648 785

─────── ─────── ─────── ─────── ───────
Profit for the year - - - 42 42
Gains on cash flow hedges (see note 24) - - 23 - 23

─────── ─────── ─────── ─────── ───────
Total other comprehensive income for the year - - 23 - 23

─────── ─────── ─────── ─────── ───────
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 23 42 65

─────── ─────── ─────── ─────── ───────
At 31 December 2021 - 150 10 690 850

═══════ ═══════ ═══════ ═══════ ═══════

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this Statement of Changes in Equity.

For a description of the nature and purpose of the hedging reserve, see note 26.

All results relate to continuing operations.

Prior-year balances have been reclassified to better reflect the nature of the underlying transactions.



19 SKY SUBSCRIBERS SERVICES LIMITED

Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Notes 2021 2020
£m £m

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 27 20 46

─────── ───────
Net cash from operating activities 20 46

─────── ───────

Cash flows used in investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 14 (2) (8)
Purchase of intangible assets 13 (14) (21)

─────── ───────
Net cash used in investing activities (16) (29)

─────── ───────

Cash flows generated used in financing activities
Cash payments for the principal portion of lease liabilities (4) (6)

─────── ───────
Net cash used in financing activities (4) (6)

─────── ───────
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents - 11

─────── ───────
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 19 8

─────── ───────
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 19 19

═══════ ═══════

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this Cash Flow Statement.

All cash flows relate to continuing operations.



20 SKY SUBSCRIBERS SERVICES LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements

1. Company information

Sky Subscribers Services Limited (the ''Company'') is a private limited liability company, limited by shares, incorporated in the
United Kingdom and registered in England and Wales. The address of the registered office is Grant Way, Isleworth, Middlesex,
TW7 5QD and registered number is 02340150. The Company's principal activities are set out in the Directors' report.

2. Significant accounting policies

a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with international accounting standards in conformity with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the IASB.

b) Basis of preparation

The Company has classified assets and liabilities as current when they are expected to be realised in, or intended for sale or
consumption in, the normal operating cycle of the Company.

The financial statements have been prepared using the going concern basis and on a historical cost basis, except for the
remeasurement to fair value of certain financial assets and liabilities as described in the accounting policies below.

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption from preparing consolidated accounts afforded by section 401 of the
Companies Act 2006, because it is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Comcast Corporation which prepares consolidated accounts
which are publicly available (see note 30).

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform (Phase 2) - Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 16, IFRS 4 was applicable for the first
time in 2021. It has no material impact on the financial statements of the Company.

Going concern

The Company's business activities together with the factors likely to affect its future development and performance are set out in
the Business Review. The Strategic Report details the financial position of the Company, as well as the Company's objectives and
policies, and assessment of risk.

Given the integrated nature of the Sky Group's financial planning and treasury functions, the impact of COVID-19 on the
Company's operations and funding requirements has been assessed at the Sky Group level. The Directors expect that the Sky
Group businesses will continue to generate adequate cash flow from operating activities and believe that these cash flows,
together with the Company's assets and available borrowings under its existing credit facilities, including the £6 billion revolving
credit facility with Comcast, will be sufficient for the Company to meet its current and long-term liquidity and capital requirements.

The Company is in a net current liability position. However, the Company has received confirmation that Comcast intends to
support the Company for a period of at least 12 months from the date of signing of these financial statements.

As a result, after making enquiries, the Directors have formed a judgement at the time of approving the financial statements that
the Company will have access to adequate resources to continue for at least 12 months from the signing of the financial
statements. Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

c) Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment ("PPE")

i. Intangible assets

Research expenditure is recognised in operating expense in the Income Statement as the expenditure is incurred. Development
expenditure (relating to the application of research knowledge to plan or design new or substantially improved products for sale or
use within the business) is recognised as an intangible asset from the point that the Company has the intention and ability to
generate future economic benefits from the development expenditure, that the development is technically feasible and that the
subsequent expenditure can be measured reliably. Any other development expenditure is recognised in operating expense as
incurred.

Other intangible assets, which are acquired by the Company separately or through a business combination, are initially stated at
cost or fair value, respectively, less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, other than those that are classified as held
for sale, which are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Amortisation of an intangible asset begins when the asset is available for use, and is charged to the Income Statement through
operating expense on a straight-line basis over the intangible asset's estimated useful life, principally being a period between three
and ten years, unless the asset life is judged to be indefinite.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

c) Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment ("PPE") (continued)

i) Intangible assets (continued)

Amortisation of an intangible asset begins when the asset is available for use, and is charged to the Income Statement through
operating expense over the asset's useful economic life in order to match the expected pattern of consumption of future economic
benefits embodied in the asset.

Principal useful economic lives used for this purpose are:

Internally generated intangible assets 3 to 5 years straight-line
Software development (external) and software licences 3 to 7 years straight-line
Other intangible assets 1 to 5 years straight-line

If the useful life is indefinite or the asset is not yet available for use, no amortisation is charged and an impairment test is carried
out at least annually. Other intangible assets are tested for impairment in line with accounting policy g) below.

ii. Property, plant and equipment ("PPE")

Owned PPE is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, (see accounting policy g). When an item
of PPE comprises major components having different useful economic lives, the components are accounted for as separate items
of PPE.

The costs of assets comprise the following, where applicable:

 Purchase price, including import duty and non-refundable purchase taxes, after probable trade discounts and rebates; and

 Directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in
the manner intended by management, including relevant delivery and logistics costs.

The cost of PPE, less estimated residual value, is depreciated in operating expense on a straight-line basis over its estimated
useful life. Land, and assets that are not yet available for use, are not depreciated. Principal useful economic lives used for this
purpose are:

Freehold buildings 25 to 40 years
Equipment, furniture and fixtures 3 to 20 years
Leasehold improvements Lesser of lease term and the useful economic life of the asset

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

To the extent that the financing for a qualifying asset is part of the Group's general borrowings, the interest cost to be capitalised is
calculated based upon the weighted average cost of borrowing to the Group (excluding the interest on any borrowings specific to
any qualifying assets). This is then applied to the expenditures on the asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the year to which they relate.

d) Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

The Company uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates.

Derivatives are held at fair value from the date on which a derivative contract is entered into. Fair value is defined as the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date under IFRS 13 "Fair Value Measurement". The Company calculates a separate credit valuation adjustment
('CVA') or debit valuation adjustment ('DVA') for each derivative based upon the net position for each counterparty relationship.

The Company calculates the CVA where it has a net asset position using a quoted credit default swap curve for the counterparty
and calculates the DVA where it has a net liability position using an industry proxy credit default swap curve for the Company. The
fair value of derivative financial instruments is calculated by discounting future cash flows with reference to the benchmark Libor
curve, adjusted by the relevant credit default swap curve.

Certain derivatives held by the Company which relate to highly probable forecast transactions ("hedged items"), which meet
qualifying criteria under IFRS 9 "Financial Instruments" ("IFRS 9"), are designated as cash flow hedges. The Company does not
hold or issue derivatives for speculative purposes.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

d) Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities (continued)

i. Derivatives that qualify for cash flow hedge accounting

Changes in the fair values of derivatives that are designated as cash flow hedges ("cash flow hedging instruments") are initially
recognised in the hedging reserve, to the extent that the hedges are effective, ineffective portions are recognised in profit or loss
immediately.

Amounts accumulated in the hedging reserve are subsequently recognised in the initial cost or other carrying value of the
non-financial asset or liability on the Balance Sheet and in the Income Statement in the periods in which the related hedged items
are recognised in the Income Statement. At inception, the effectiveness of the Company's cash flow hedges is assessed through a
comparison of the principal terms of the hedging instrument and the underlying hedged item. The ongoing effectiveness of the
Company's cash flow hedges is assessed using the dollar-offset approach, with the expected cash flows of hedging instruments
being compared to the expected cash flows of the hedged items. This assessment is used to demonstrate that each hedge
relationship is expected to be highly effective on inception, has been highly effective in the year and is expected to continue to be
highly effective in future periods. The measurement of hedge ineffectiveness for the Company's hedging instruments is calculated
using the hypothetical derivative method, with the fair values of the hedging instruments being compared to those of the
hypothetical derivative that would result in the designated cash flow hedge achieving perfect hedge effectiveness.

The excess of the cumulative change in the fair value of the actual hedging instrument compared to that of the hypothetical
derivative is deemed to be hedge ineffectiveness, which is recognised in the Income Statement.

When a cash flow hedging instrument expires, is terminated or is exercised, or if a hedge no longer meets the qualifying criteria for
hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in the hedging reserve at that time remains in the hedging reserve provided
that the underlying transaction is still expected to occur. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative
gain or loss that was reported in the hedging reserve is immediately recognised in the Income Statement and all future changes in
the fair value of the cash flow hedging instruments are immediately recognised in the Income Statement.

e) Financial assets and liabilities

Directly attributable transaction costs are included in the initial measurement of financial assets and liabilities only with respect to
those assets and liabilities that are not subsequently measured at fair value through profit and loss. At each balance sheet date,
the Company assesses whether there is any objective evidence that any financial asset is impaired.

Financial assets and liabilities are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Financial assets
and liabilities are recognised on the Company's Balance Sheet when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the financial asset or liability. Financial assets are derecognised from the Balance Sheet when the Company's contractual rights
to the cash flows expire or the Company transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of the financial asset. Financial liabilities
are derecognised from the Company's Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires.

i. Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and, where no stated interest
rate is applicable, are measured at the original invoice amount, if the effect of discounting is immaterial. Where discounting is
material, trade and other receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

An allowance account is maintained to reduce the carrying value of trade and other receivables for impairment losses provided for
on an expected loss model according to IFRS 9, with movements in the allowance account, either from increased impairment
losses or reversals of impairment losses, being recognised in the Income Statement.

ii. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, bank accounts, deposits receivable on demand and deposits with maturity dates
of three months or less from the date of inception. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and which form an integral part of
the Company's cash management are also included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.

iii. Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are non-derivative financial liabilities and are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Trade and other payables with no stated interest rate are measured at the original invoice amount if the effect of
discounting is immaterial.



23 SKY SUBSCRIBERS SERVICES LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

e) Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

iv. Borrowings

Borrowings are recorded as the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Finance charges, including any premium payable on
settlement or redemption and direct issue costs, are accounted for on an accruals basis in the Income Statement using the
effective interest method and are added to the carrying amount of the underlying instrument to which they relate, to the extent that
they are not settled in the year in which they arise.

f) Investment in subsidiaries

An investment in a subsidiary is recognised at cost less any provision for impairment. As permitted by section 133 of the
Companies Act 2006, where the relief afforded under section 131 of the Companies Act 2006 applies, cost is the aggregate of the
nominal value of the relevant number of the Company's shares and the fair value of any other consideration given to acquire the
share capital of the subsidiary undertakings.

g) Impairment

At each balance sheet date, in accordance with IAS 36 ''Impairment of Assets'', the Company reviews the carrying amounts of all
its assets excluding inventories, non-current assets classified as held-for-sale, financial assets (see accounting policy e) and
deferred taxation (see accounting policy l) to determine whether there is any indication that any of those assets have suffered an
impairment loss.

An impairment is recognised in the Income Statement whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of net selling price, defined as the fair value less costs to
sell, and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the asset.

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash generating units are
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to those units, and then to reduce the carrying amount of
other assets in the unit on a pro-rata basis.

An impairment loss for an individual asset or cash generating unit shall be reversed if there has been a change in estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised and is only reversed to the extent that the
asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. Impairment of goodwill is not reversed.

h) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a probable, present legal or constructive obligation to make a transfer of
economic benefits as a result of past events where a reliable estimate is available. The amounts recognised represent the
Company's best estimate of the transfer of benefits that will be required to settle the obligation as of the balance sheet date.

Provisions are discounted if the effect of the time value of money is material using a pre-tax market rate adjusted for risks specific
to the liability.

i) Revenue recognition

Revenue, which excludes value added tax, represents the gross inflow of economic benefit from the Company's operating
activities, and is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.

The Company's main source of revenue is derived from Irish customers, which is recognised over time as the services are
performed, or at a point in time as the goods are provided and control is transferred. Revenue is recognised on an accruals basis
as the service is provided.

Revenue is also derived from intercompany revenue earned from the provision of call centre services to other Group companies,
which is recognised over time as the services are provided.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

i) Revenue recognition (continued)

The Company's main sources of revenue are recognised as follows:

Direct to consumer revenue includes subscription and transactional revenue from residential and commercial customers.
Subscription revenue includes revenue from residential and commercial subscribers to TV, Mobile and home communication
products, including over-the-top ("OTT") subscriptions, and income from set-top box, Mobile handset and tablet sales, and
installation, service calls and warranties.

Revenue is recognised, net of any discount given, at a point in time or over time as the goods or services are provided, and control
is transferred.

A bundle exists where a customer enters into contracts for goods and services at or around the same time, where the transaction
can only be understood commercially with reference to the bundle of goods and services as a whole, and where there is price
inter-dependency between the products in a bundle. Where a customer purchases further products or services subsequent to the
original sale, these are judged to represent contract modifications and are accounted for according to IFRS 15's guidance on
contract modifications.

When the Company sells an installation or service and a subscription in one bundled transaction, the total consideration from the
arrangement is allocated to each element based on their relative fair values, according to standalone selling prices. The fair value
of each individual element is determined using vendor specific or third party evidence. Discounts are allocated to products on a
pro-rata basis according to relative fair values.

Transactional revenue includes the purchase of physical content, OTT passes, pay-per-view and buy to keep content by residential
and commercial customers.

Transactional revenue is recognised, net of any discount given, at a point in time or over time as relevant goods or service are
provided, and control is transferred.

j) Employee benefits

i. Wages, salaries and social security contributions

Wages, salaries, social security contributions, bonuses payable and non-monetary benefits for current employees are recognised in
the Income Statement as the employees' services are rendered.

ii. Pension obligations

Where the Company provides pensions to eligible employees through defined contribution schemes, the amount charged to the
Income Statement in the year represents the cost of contributions payable by the Company to the schemes in exchange for
employee services rendered in that year. The assets of the schemes are held independently of the Company.

iii. Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised as a liability at the earlier of when the Company can no longer withdraw the offer of the
termination benefit and when the Group recognises any related restructuring costs, such termination being before the normal
retirement date or as the result of an offer to encourage voluntary redundancy.

iv. Share based payments

The Company issues equity-settled share-based payments to certain employees, using shares of its ultimate parent undertaking,
which are measured at fair value and recognised as an expense in the Income Statement with a corresponding increase in
liabilities to the ultimate parent undertaking.

The fair values of these payments are measured at the dates of grant using option-pricing models, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the awards are granted. The fair value is recognised over the period during which employees become
unconditionally entitled to the awards, subject to the Company's estimate of the number of awards which will be forfeited, either due
to employees leaving the Company prior to vesting or due to non-market based performance conditions not being met.

Where an award has market-based performance conditions, the fair value of the award is adjusted for the probability of achieving
these via the option pricing model. The total amount recognised in the Income Statement as an expense is adjusted to reflect the
actual number of awards that vest, except where forfeiture is due to the failure to meet market-based performance measures. In
the event of a cancellation, whether by the Company or by a participating employee, the compensation expense that would have
been recognised over the remainder of the vesting year is recognised immediately in the Income Statement.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

k) Leases

IFRS 16 removed the distinction between operating and finance leases and requires the recognition of a non-current asset
representing the right to use the leased item, and a loan obligation for future lease payables, for all leases. The Company has
elected to not apply the general requirements to short-term leases (lease term of 12 months or less). These leases will be
recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense on the Income Statement over the term. The Company has also elected not to
recognise non-lease components separately from lease components for those classes of assets in which non-lease components
are not significant with respect to the total value of the arrangement.

Right-of-use (ROU) assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, plus lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, less any lease incentives received and any initial direct costs incurred.

ROU assets are subsequently measured using the cost model by charging depreciation to profit and loss over the term of the lease
and adjusting for any remeasurement of the lease liability or impairment of the asset.

A provision is recognised if the Company incurs an obligation for costs to be incurred in dismantling and removing the underlying
asset, restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions
of the lease. If the costs incurred relate to a ROU asset, the costs are included in the related ROU asset.

Lease liabilities are initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at commencement date,
adjusting for any remeasurement of the lease liability if it can be readily determined, and discounted by using the rate implicit to the
lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, the lessee utilises the incremental borrowing rate of interest required to finance the
expected payments during the lease term. Lease payments included in the initial measurement comprise fixed payments, less any
incentives receivable; variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate; amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees; the exercise price of a purchase option if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option and payments for
penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising an option to terminate the lease.

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the contract, together with any period covered by an
extension (or termination) option whose exercise is at the option of the Company and is assessed to be reasonably certain that it
will be exercised (or will not be exercised). The Company considers all accessible information by asset class in the industry and
evaluates relevant factors that create an economic incentive to exercise an option.

Lease liabilities are subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability and reducing
the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made. The Company also remeasures the carrying amount to reflect any
reassessment or lease modifications. Interest on the liability will be charged as an expense on the Income statement.

Lessor

When the Company is a lessor, the leases are classified as finance or operating leases. If the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

Assets which are provided under operating lease arrangements are recognised as assets within property, plant and equipment. The
assets remain in the economic ownership of the Group for the duration of the lease, and are depreciated over their useful economic
lives. Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

At commencement of the lease, assets under finance lease arrangement are derecognised from property, plant and equipment.
Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables at the amount of the net investment in the leases.
Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods to reflect a constant periodic rate of return.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

l) Tax, including deferred tax

The Company's liability for current tax is based on taxable profits for the year, and is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profits.

Taxable temporary differences arising from goodwill and, except in a business combination, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting profit nor taxable profit, are not provided for. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Company is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect an amount that is
probable to be realised based on the weight of all available evidence. Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to
apply in the year when the liability is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted. Deferred
tax is charged or credited in the Income Statement / Statement of Comprehensive Income, except where it relates to items charged
or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also included within equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis.

m) Distributions to equity shareholders

Dividends are recognised in the retained earnings reserve in the year in which they are declared.

n) Foreign currency remeasurement

The Company's functional currency and presentational currency is pounds sterling.

Trading activities denominated in foreign currencies are recorded in pounds sterling at the applicable monthly exchange rates.
Monetary assets, liabilities and commitments denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are recorded at the rates
of exchange at that date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recorded in pounds sterling at
the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the initial transaction. Gains and losses from the remeasurement of assets and liabilities
are included net in profit for the year.

o) Accounting standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards that are not yet effective

The Company has not yet adopted certain new standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards, which have been
published but are only effective for accounting periods beginning after 1 January 2021. These new pronouncements are listed
below. The Directors are currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of these standards, amendments and interpretations in
future periods.

 Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions – Amendment to IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ (effective 1 April 2021)

 Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018 – 2020 – Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9 and IFRS 16 (effective 1
January 2022)

 Conceptual Framework – Amendments to IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’ (effective 1 January 2022)

 Proceeds before Intended Use – Amendments to IAS 16 ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ (effective 1 January 2022)

 Onerous Contracts – Cost of Fulfilling a Contract – Amendment to IAS 37 ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets’ (effective 1 January 2022)

 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current – Amendment to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’
(effective 1 January 2023)

 Implementation issues – Amendments to IFRS 17 ‘Insurance Contracts’ (effective 1 January 2023)

 Definition of Accounting Estimates – Amendment to IAS 8 ‘Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and
errors’ (effective 1 January 2023)

 Disclosure of Accounting Policies – Amendment to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ (effective 1 January 2023)
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

p) Critical accounting policies and judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

Certain accounting policies are considered to be critical to the Company. An accounting policy is considered to be critical if, in the
Directors' judgement, its selection or application materially affects the Company's financial position or results. The application of the
Company's accounting policies may also require the use of estimation or judgement in a manner which may affect the Company's
financial position or results.

Below is a summary of the Company's critical accounting policies and details of the key areas of estimation or judgement that are
exercised in their application.

i. Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment (see notes 13 and 14)

The assessment of the useful economic lives of these assets requires judgement. Depreciation and amortisation is charged to the
Income Statement based on the useful economic life selected, which requires an estimation of the period and profile over which the
Company expects to consume the future economic benefits embodied in the assets. The Company reviews its useful economic
lives on at least an annual basis.

Determining whether the carrying amount of these assets has any indication of impairment also requires judgement. If an indication
of impairment is identified, further judgement is required to assess whether the carrying amount can be supported by, for example,
the net present value of future cash flows forecast to be derived from the asset. This forecast involves cash flow projections and
selecting the appropriate discount rate, where applicable.

Assessing whether assets meet the required criteria for initial capitalisation requires judgement. This requires a determination of
whether the assets will result in future benefits to the Company. In particular, internally generated intangible assets must be
assessed during the development phase to identify whether the Company has the ability and intention to complete the
development successfully.

Determining the costs of assets to be capitalised requires judgement. Specifically, judgement and estimation is required in
determining the amount of duties and non-refundable taxes, probable trade discounts and rebates, and directly attributable costs to
bring the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management
(including relevant delivery and logistics costs to the customer's premises) to be allocated to the asset.

ii. Leases (see notes 15 and 22)

Lease terms used in the calculation of right of use assets and lease liabilities are estimated. The term is based on the
non-cancellable period, including periods covered by options to extend the lease term or terminate, where exercise is assessed to
be reasonably certain on an individual lease basis.

As the Company is part of a wider Comcast Group financing facility, the Company has concluded that discount rates derived from
Comcast's borrowing cost by term, represent the Company's best estimate of its incremental borrowing rate in the context of the
wider Group. The Company have also applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics.

The Company has applied judgement in determining whether or not certain service arrangements are or contain a lease, taking into
account IFRS 16 guidance, and the Group accounting policies of its ultimate parent, regarding whether there is an identified asset,
and whether the asset is specified, in order to determine if there is a leased asset requiring recognition under IFRS 16.

iii. Revenue (see note 3)

Selecting the appropriate timing for, and amount of, revenue to be recognised requires judgement. This may involve estimating the
fair value of consideration before it is received. Judgement is required in determining which products constitute a bundle, and how
revenue is allocated to products within the bundle.

When the Company sells an installation service and TV and/or home communications subscription in one bundled transaction, the
total consideration from the arrangement is allocated to each element based on its relative fair value, according to the standalone
selling prices of each performance obligation. The fair value of each individual element is determined using vendor specific or third
party evidence. Discounts are allocated to products on a pro-rata basis according to relative fair values.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

There are no areas identified for which there are major sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting year end that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to be made to the carrying value amounts of assets or liabilities within the next
financial year. As such, there are no critical estimates noted.

There are not considered to be any critical judgements applied in the preparation of the financial statements.

Areas where estimation or judgement is applied (primarily in the context of applying critical accounting policies) have been
discussed in the preceding section above.



28 SKY SUBSCRIBERS SERVICES LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

3. Revenue

  2021 2020
  £m £m
Group support services revenue 521 554
Irish branch revenue 526 510

─────── ───────
Total revenue 1,047 1,064

═══════ ═══════

Group support services revenue is generated from intercompany recharges for the provision of core management and call handling
services to the rest of the Sky Group (the "Group"). Irish branch revenue relates to revenue from direct-to-home ("DTH") pay
television, broadband and telephony subscriptions in Ireland. All revenue arises from services provided in the UK and Ireland.

4. Operating expense

  2021 2020
  £m £m
Programming 120 266
Sales, general and administration 878 712

─────── ───────
Total operating expense 998 978

═══════ ═══════

Within Programming expenses we have included Direct Network costs associated with the Irish branch of £67 million (2020: £64
million).

5. Investment income

  2021 2020
  £m £m
Distributions received - 9

─────── ───────
- 9

═══════ ═══════

In the prior year, the Company received a distribution of £9 million from its investment in Athena Court Property Unit Trust.

6. Finance income

  2021 2020
  £m £m
Foreign exchange remeasurement 1 3
Lease interest (1) (1)

─────── ───────
- 2

─────── ───────

7. Net losses on Investment

During the year, the Company realised net gains on disposal of investments of £nil (2020: losses of £10 million).
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8. Profit before tax

Profit before tax is stated after charging 2021 2020
  £m £m
Depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment 5 6
Amortisation of intangible assets 41 39
Depreciation and impairment of right of use assets 6 6
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment - 1

═══════ ═══════

9. Auditor's remuneration

Audit fees

Amounts paid to the auditor for the audit of the Company's annual financial statements of £125,000 (2020: £125,000) were borne
by another Group subsidiary in both the current and prior year. No amounts for other services have been paid to the auditor.

10. Directors Remuneration

Directors' remuneration is £nil for both the current financial year and prior financial year. Therefore, all sections 305 and 306
Companies Act 2014 disclosures are £nil for the current financial year and prior financial year. Directors did not receive
remuneration for their role as statutory directors of the Company during the year, because they are employees who receive
remuneration for their employment with the Sky Group.

11. Employee benefits and key management compensation

a) Company employee benefits

2021 2020
  £m £m
Wages and salaries 309 319
Social security costs 26 26
Costs of employee share option schemes(i) 3 5
Contributions to the Sky Pension Plan ("the Pension Plan")(ii) 17 16

─────── ───────
  355 366

═══════ ═══════

(i) The expense recognised for employee share option schemes relates wholly to equity-settled share-based payments granted
under the Restricted Stock Units and Sharesave schemes operated by Comcast Corporation (note 25).

(ii) The Company operates a defined contribution pension scheme through the Pension Plan. The pension charge for the year
represents the cost of contributions payable by the Company to the scheme during the year. The Company's amount payable
to the scheme at 31 December 2021 was £3 million (2020: £3 million).

The average monthly number of full-time equivalent persons (including temporary employees) employed by the Company during
the year was 10,015 (2020: 9,863).

2021 2020
  Number Number
Channels and services 28 26
Transmission and technology 107 108
Customer services, sales and marketing 9,394 9,266
Management and administration 486 463

─────── ───────
  10,015 9,863

b) Key management compensation

The Directors did not receive any remuneration during the year (31 December 2020: £nil) in respect of their services to the
Company.
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12. Tax

a) Tax recognised in the Income Statement

  2021 2020
  £m £m
Current tax expense    
Current year 8 14

─────── ───────
Total current tax charge 8 14

─────── ───────
 
Deferred tax credit
Origination and reversal of temporary differences - (1)
Change in corporation tax rate (1) -

─────── ───────
Total deferred tax credit (1) (1)

─────── ───────
Tax expense 7 13

═══════ ═══════

b) Tax recognised directly in equity    
  2021 2020
  £m £m
Deferred tax (charge)/credit relating to cash flow hedges (3) 4

─────── ───────
(3) 4

  ═══════ ═══════

c) Reconciliation of effective tax rate

The tax expense for the year is lower (2020: lower) than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of (19.0%) (2020: 19.0%)
applied to profit before tax. The differences are explained below:

The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit in the Income Statement as follows:

2021 2020
  £m £m
Profit before tax 49 87
Profit before tax multiplied by rate of corporation tax in the UK of 19.0% (2020: 19.0%) 9 17

─────── ───────
Effects of:
Effect of branch exemption (1) (4)
Non-deductible expense - 1
Adjustment in respect of prior year - (1)
Change in corporation tax rate (1) -

─────── ───────
Tax 7 13

═══════ ═══════

Tax predominantly relates to UK corporation tax and is settled by Sky UK Limited on the Company's behalf. In addition, the Irish
branch of the company is liable to Irish corporation tax.
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13. Intangible assets

Internally
generated
intangible

assets

Software
development

(external)
Software
licences

Other
intangible

assets

Internally
generated
intangible
assets not

yet
available
for use

Acquired
intangible
assets not

yet
available
for use Total

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Cost
At 1 January 2020 103 287 34 6 3 3 436

Additions 2 - - - 3 16 21

Disposals (7) (3) (9) - - - (19)

Transfers 1 1 - - (1) (1) -

────── ────── ────── ────── ────── ────── ──────
At 31 December 2020 99 285 25 6 5 18 438

────── ────── ────── ────── ────── ────── ──────
Additions 1 1 8 - 10 3 23
Disposals (8) (3) (3) - - - (14)
Transfers 3 21 - - (3) (21) -

────── ────── ────── ────── ────── ────── ──────
At 31 December 2021 95 304 30 6 12 - 447

────── ────── ────── ────── ────── ────── ──────
Amortisation

At 1 January 2020 67 128 35 6 - - 236
Charge for the year 14 25 - - - - 39

Disposals (6) (2) (10) - - - (18)

────── ────── ────── ────── ────── ────── ──────
At 31 December 2020 75 151 25 6 - - 257

────── ────── ────── ────── ────── ────── ──────
Charge for the year 14 19 8 - - - 41

Disposals (8) (3) (3) - - - (14)

────── ────── ────── ────── ────── ────── ──────
At 31 December 2021 81 167 30 6 - - 284

────── ────── ────── ────── ────── ────── ──────
Carrying amounts
At 1 January 2020 36 159 (1) - 3 3 200

══════ ══════ ══════ ══════ ══════ ══════ ══════
At 31 December 2020 24 134 - - 5 18 181

══════ ══════ ══════ ══════ ══════ ══════ ══════
At 31 December 2021 14 137 - - 12 - 163

══════ ══════ ══════ ══════ ══════ ══════ ══════
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13. Intangible assets (continued)

The Company's internally generated intangible assets relate to software development associated with our customer management
system. The Company's other intangible assets mainly include copyright licenses, customer lists and relationships.

The estimated future amortisation charge on finite-lived intangible assets for each of the next five years is set out below. It is likely
that amortisation will vary from the figures below as the estimate does not include the impact of any future investments, disposals
or capital expenditure.

2022 2023 2024 2025 2026
£m £m £m £m £m

Estimated amortisation charge 37 30 26 25 24

14. Property, plant and equipment

  Freehold
land
and

buildings (i)
Leasehold

improvements

Equipment,
furniture

and
fixtures

Assets
not yet

available
for use  Total

  £m £m £m £m £m
Cost      
At 1 January 2020 26 1 33 1 61
Additions 8 - - - 8
Disposals - - (7) - (7)
Transfers - - 1 (1) -

────── ────── ────── ────── ──────
At 31 December 2020 34 1 27 - 62

────── ────── ────── ────── ──────
Additions - - 1 1 2
Disposals - - (9) - (9)

────── ────── ────── ────── ──────
At 31 December 2021 34 1 19 1 55

────── ────── ────── ────── ──────
Accumulated
depreciation

         

At 1 January 2020 14 1 18 - 33
Charge for the year 1 - 5 - 6
Disposals - - (7) - (7)

────── ────── ────── ────── ──────
At 31 December 2020 15 1 16 - 32

────── ────── ────── ────── ──────
Charge for the year 1 - 4 - 5
Disposals - - (9) - (9)

────── ────── ────── ────── ──────
At 31 December 2021 16 1 11 - 28

────── ────── ────── ────── ──────
Carrying amounts      
At 1 January 2020 12 - 15 1 28

══════ ══════ ══════ ══════ ══════
At 31 December 2020 19 - 11 - 30

══════ ══════ ══════ ══════ ══════
At 31 December 2021 18 - 8 1 27

══════ ══════ ══════ ══════ ══════
(i) Depreciation was not charged on £1 million of land (2020: £1 million).
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15. Right-of-use assets

Property and
Other Leases Total

£m £m
Cost
Initial application of IFRS 16 35 35

─────── ───────
At 31 December 2020 35 35

─────── ───────
Additions 2 2
Modifications (5) (5)
Disposals (2) (2)

─────── ───────
At 31 December 2021 30 30

─────── ───────
Depreciation
Charge for the year 6 6

─────── ───────
At 31 December 2020 6 6

─────── ───────
Charge for the year 6 6

Disposals (2) (2)

─────── ───────
At 31 December 2021 10 10

─────── ───────
Carrying amounts

═══════ ═══════
At 31 December 2020 29 29

═══════ ═══════
At 31 December 2021 20 20

═══════ ═══════

All leases relate to property. The rents payable under these leases are subject to renegotiation at the various intervals specified in
the leases.

16. Investment in subsidiaries

Details of the investments of the Company are as follows:

Name Address Country of
incorporation

Description and
proportion of shares held
(%)

Direct holdings

Sky Ireland Limited Fifth floor, Burlington Plaza,
Burlington Road, Dublin 4 Republic of Ireland 1 ordinary share of €1

(100%)

Investments in subsidiaries shown above represent the cost of the shares of the wholly-owned subsidiary undertakings plus
non-current loans advanced, less provisions made for any impairment in value.
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17. Deferred tax

Recognised deferred tax assets      

Accelerated
tax

depreciation

Short-term
temporary
differences

Share-
based

payments
temporary
differences

Financial
instruments
temporary
differences Total

£m £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2020 3 - 1 (2) 2
Credit to equity - - - 4 4

─────── ─────── ─────── ─────── ───────
At 31 December 2020 3 - 1 2 6

─────── ─────── ─────── ─────── ───────
Credit to income 1 1 - - 2

Charge to equity - - - (3) (3)

─────── ─────── ─────── ─────── ───────
At 31 December 2021 4 1 1 (1) 5

═══════ ═══════ ═══════ ═══════ ═══════

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the years in which they reverse. The
rate enacted for the relevant years of reversal is 25% (2020: 19%).

18. Cost to obtain customer relationships

Costs to obtain contracts relate to commissions paid to staff relating to acquisition of new subscriber contracts. At 31 December
2021 the balance of cost to obtain contracts was £4 million (2020: £3 million). Amortisation of £1 million was recognised in the
reporting period.

These costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over the customer's minimum contract period as this reflects the period over
which benefits are transferred to the customer.
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19. Trade and other receivables

2021

Restated
(note 31)

2020
£m £m

Gross trade receivables 10 6
Less: loss allowance (3) (4)

─────── ───────
Net trade receivables 7 2

─────── ───────
Amounts falling due within one year:
Amounts receivable from other group companies (a) 208 187
Prepayments 11 27
VAT 16 25
Accrued income 5 8
Contract assets 2 1
Other receivables 2 -

─────── ───────
Current trade and other receivables 251 250

─────── ───────
Amounts falling due after one year:
Amounts receivable from parent company (b) 1,036 1,093
Amounts receivable from other group companies (a) 45 45
Non-current other receivables 1 -

─────── ───────
Total non-current trade and other receivables 1,082 1,138

─────── ───────
Total trade and other receivables 1,333 1,388

═══════ ═══════

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates their fair value.

Amounts relating to contract assets are balances that arise from customers with contracts for TV, Broadband and Talk services, for
performance obligations already satisfied. Amounts previously recognised as a contract asset are reclassified to trade receivables
at the point at which it is invoiced to the customer. The contract asset is recognised in the Income Statement over the customer's
minimum contract period.

The ageing of the Company's net trade receivables which are past due but not impaired is as follows:

  2021 2020
  £m £m
Up to 30 days past due date 6 2
More than 120 days past due date 1 -

─────── ───────
7 2

═══════ ═══════
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19. Trade and other receivables (continued)

Loss allowance

  2021 2020
  £m £m
Balance at beginning of year 4 5
Decrease of loss amount recognised in Income Statement (1) (1)

─────── ───────
Balance at end of year 3 4

═══════ ═══════

a) Amounts receivable from other group companies

Amounts due from other Group companies as at 31 December 2021 are £208 million (2020: £187 million). £208 million (2020:
£187 million) represent trade receivables, these are non-interest bearing and are repayable on demand.

The Company is owed £45 million (2020: £45 million) of non-interest bearing loan receivable from Sky Operational Finance Limited
which is repayable on demand.

Within the Company there is a concentration of risk within amounts receivable from other Group companies. No allowances have
been recorded against amounts receivable from Group companies as Company has assessed that the expected credit loss in
relation to these balances is immaterial.

b) Amounts receivable from immediate parent company

Amounts due from immediate parent company Sky UK Limited totalling £1,036 million (2020: £1,093 million) represent trade
receivables; they are non-interest bearing and are repayable on demand.

The Company is exposed to credit risk on its trade and other receivables. However, the Company does not have any significant
concentrations of credit risk with third parties, as the majority of its receivables are from other Group companies. No allowances
have been recorded against amounts receivable from other Group companies as Company has assessed that the expected credit
loss in relation to these balances is immaterial.

20. Trade and other payables

  2021 2020
  £m £m
Current
Amounts falling due within one year:
Trade payables 22 25
Amounts payable to other group companies (a) 542 609
Amounts payable to ultimate parent company 2 2
VAT 19 33
Accruals 65 91
Deferred income 26 31
Other payables 9 9

─────── ───────
Total current trade and other payables 685 800

─────── ───────
Non-current
Trade and other payables - 3

─────── ───────
Total trade and other payables 685 803

═══════ ═══════
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20. Trade and other payables (continued)

a) Amounts payable to other group companies

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates their fair values. Trade payables
principally comprise amounts outstanding for programming purchases and on-going costs.
There are amounts due to other group companies totalling £542 million (2020: £609 million) of which £530 million (2020: £609
million) are trade payables; these balances are non-interest bearing and are repayable on demand.

The Company owes Comcast Capital International Limited ("CCIL") £12 million (2020:£nil). The Company is a pooling participant in
the multi currency notional pool operated by CCIL and thus any overdrawn accounts are funded by CCIL.

As at 31 December 2021, for pooling participants the followings rates apply:

Currency Reference rate Participant deposit Participant funding

Euros 1 month € Libor Reference rate minus 11 basis
points (floor @ 0%)

Reference rate plus 60 basis
points

Pounds Sterling 1 month £ Libor Reference rate minus 11 basis
points (floor @ 0%)

Reference rate plus 60 basis
points

21. Provisions

 

At
1 January

2020

Provided
during the

year

Utilised
during the

year

At 31
December

2020

Provided
during the

year

Utilised
during the

year

At 31
December

2021
  £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Current liabilities              
Restructuring provision 1 9 (3) 7 - (4) 3
Property provisions - 3 - 3 - - 3
Customer-related provisions 5 - (4) 1 - - 1
Other provisions 8 2 - 10 1 - 11

──────────────────────────────────────────
14 14 (7) 21 1 (4) 18

──────────────────────────────────────────
Non-current

Property provisions 4 2 - 6 - - 6
──────────────────────────────────────────

4 2 - 6 - - 6
══════════════════════════════════════════

(i) Restructuring provision: These provisions relate to costs incurred as part of corporate restructuring and efficiency programmes.

(ii) Property provisions: These provisions relate to amounts provided for property dilapidation expenses.

(iii) Customer-related provisions: These provisions are for those costs incurred in the one-off upgrade of set-top boxes and the
programme to replace selected Sky Broadband router devices.

(iv) Other provisions: These provisions relate to amounts provided for regulatory compliance and 3rd party commitments.
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22. Lease liabilities

  2021 2020
  £m £m

Current lease liabilities 4 5

  ═══════ ═══════ 
Non-current lease liabilities 20 24

  ═══════ ═══════
Maturity of lease liabilities

2021 2020

  £m £m
Within one year 4 5

Later than one year but not later than five years 10 12

Later than five years 10 12

─────── ───────
Total lease liabilities 24 29

═══════ ═══════

23. Derivatives and other financial Instruments

Set out below are the derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company to manage its interest rate and foreign
exchange risks.

2021 2020
Asset Liability Asset Liability

Fair Value Notional Fair Value Notional Fair Value Notional Fair Value Notional
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Fair Value Hedges
Cash flow hedges:
Forward foreign
exchange contracts

11 220 - - 1 127 (15) 353

────── ────── ────── ────── ────── ────── ────── ──────
Total 11 220 - - 1 127 (15) 353

══════ ══════ ══════ ══════ ══════ ══════ ══════ ══════

The maturity of the derivative financial instruments is as follows:

2021 2020
Asset Liability Asset Liability

£m £m £m £m
In one year or less 8 - - (11)
Between one and two years 3 - 1 (4)

─────── ─────── ─────── ───────
Total 11 - 1 (15)

═══════ ═══════ ═══════ ═══════

The Company's portfolio of rate derivatives is diversified by maturity. Natural offsets between transactions within the portfolio and
the designation of certain derivatives as hedges significantly reduce the risk of Income Statement volatility.

All derivatives are transacted with Sky UK Limited.
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23. Derivatives and other financial instruments (continued)

Hedge accounting classification and impact

The company's principal foreign currency exposures arise from the revenue which is denominated in Euro. The treasury policy
allows for highly probable foreign currency transaction exposures to be hedged for up to 30 months ahead.

The Company designates its forward foreign exchange contracts as cash flow hedges of forecast foreign currency sales and
purchases. Gains or losses are released from the hedging reserve and included in the initial cost or other carrying amount of the
non-financial asset or liability on the Balance Sheet and affect the Income Statement in the same periods as the related hedge
items. If forecast transactions are no longer expected to occur, any amounts included in the hedging reserve related to that forecast
transaction would be recognised directly in the Income Statement. During the current year gains of £218,000 were removed from
the hedging reserve and credited to revenue in the Income Statement (2020: gains of £5 million).

Hedge effectiveness testing is performed quarterly using the dollar-offset approach. The actual movement in the hedging items is
compared with the movement in the valuation of the hypothetically perfect hedge of the underlying risk at inception, and any
ineffectiveness is recognised directly in the Income Statement. No ineffectiveness was recognised in the Income Statement during
the current year (2020: no ineffectiveness).

A hedge relationship is deemed to be effective if the ratio of changes in valuation of the underlying hedged item and the hedging
instrument is within the range of 80% to 125%. Any relationship which has a ratio outside this range is deemed to be ineffective, at
which point hedge accounting is suspended. During the current year, there were no instances in which the hedge relationship was
not highly effective (2020: no instances).

(a) Carrying value and fair value

The Company's principal financial instruments comprise trade and other payables and provisions. The Company has various
financial assets such as trade receivables and cash and cash equivalents.

The accounting classification of each class of the Company's financial assets and liabilities, together with their fair values is as
follows:

Financial Assets at Financial Liabilities at

  Amortised
Cost

Fair Value
through

Profit and
Loss

Amortised
Cost

Fair Value
through

Profit and
Loss

Total carrying
value Total fair values

  £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 31 December 2021
Derivative financial instruments - 11 - - 11 11
Trade and other payables - - (634) - (634) (634)
Trade and other receivables 1,303 - - - 1,303 1,303
Cash and cash equivalents 19 - - - 19 19

═══════════════════════ ════════════════════════

At 31 December 2020
Derivative financial instruments - 1 - (15) (14) (14)
Trade and other payables - - (729) - (729) (729)
Trade and other receivables 1,335 - - - 1,335 1,335
Cash and cash equivalents 19 - - - 19 19

═══════════════════════ ════════════════════════

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as follows:

 The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with standard terms and conditions and which are traded on active
liquid markets is determined with reference to quoted market prices;

 The fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities (excluding derivative instruments) is determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices from observable current market
transactions and dealer quotes for similar instruments;

 Foreign currency forward contracts are measured using quoted forward exchange rates and yield curves derived from quoted
interest rates matching maturities of the contracts;

 The fair value of obligations under finance leases and other borrowings is estimated by discounting the future cash flows to net
present value. The fair value of short-term deposits and cash and cash equivalents is equivalent to carrying value due to the
short-term nature of these instruments.
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23. Derivatives and other financial instruments (continued)

(a) Carrying value and fair value (continued)

The differences between carrying values and fair values reflect unrealised gains or losses inherent in the financial instruments,
based on valuations as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020. The volatile nature of the markets means that values at any
subsequent date could be significantly different from the values reported above.

(b) Fair value hierarchy

The following table categorises the Company's financial instruments which are held at fair value into one of three levels to reflect
the degree to which observable inputs are used in determining their fair values:

  Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
  £m £m £m £m
At 31 December 2021
Financial assets
Forward foreign exchange contracts 11 - 11 -

─────── ─────── ─────── ───────
Total 11 - 11 -

═══════ ═══════ ═══════ ═══════

  Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
  £m £m £m £m
At 31 December 2020
Financial assets
Forward foreign exchange contracts 1 - 1 -

─────── ─────── ─────── ───────
Total 1 - 1 -

═══════ ═══════ ═══════ ═══════
Financial liabilities
Forward foreign exchange contracts (15) - (15) -

─────── ─────── ─────── ───────
Total (15) - (15) -

═══════ ═══════ ═══════ ═══════

Level 1

Fair values measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2

Fair values measured using inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability
either directly or indirectly. Derivative financial instrument fair values are present values determined from future cash flows
discounted at rates derived from market source data.

Level 3

Fair values measured using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data.
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23. Derivatives and other financial Instruments (continued)

(c) Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

The following table show those financial asset and liabilities subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and
similar agreements.

Related
amounts not
set off in the
balance sheet

Gross amounts
of recognised

financial assets
/ (liabilities)

Net amounts
presented in

Balance Sheet Net amount
  £m £m £m

At 31 December 2021  
Derivative financial assets 11 11 11

─────── ─────── ───────
Total 11 11 11

═══════ ═══════ ═══════
At 31 December 2020
Derivative financial assets 1 1 1
Derivative financial liabilities (15) (15) (15)

─────── ─────── ───────
Total (14) (14) (14)

═══════ ═══════ ═══════
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments that do not meet the criteria for offset could be settled net in certain circumstances under ISDA
('International Swaps and Derivatives Association') agreements where each party has the option to settle amounts on a net basis in
the event of default from the other.

(d) Changes in assets and liabilities arising from financing activities

  31 December
2020

Net
(proceeds)/
repayments

Interest
Expense Other

31 December
2021

  £m £m £m £m £m
Finance lease liability (29) 6 1 (2) (24)

─────── ─────── ─────── ─────── ───────
Assets and liabilities arising from financing
activities (29) 6 1 (2) (24)

═══════ ═══════ ═══════ ═══════ ═══════

The Comcast Group's Treasury function is responsible for raising finance for the Company's operations and managing credit risk.
The Sky Group Treasury function manages liquidity, foreign exchange and interest rate. Treasury operations are conducted within a
framework of policies and guidelines authorised and reviewed by both the Audit Committee and the Board, which receive regular
updates of Treasury activity. Derivative instruments are transacted for risk management purposes only. It is the Group's policy that
all hedging is to cover known risks and no speculative trading is undertaken. Regular and frequent reporting to management is
required for all transactions and exposures, and the internal control environment is subject to periodic review by the Group's
internal audit team.

The Sky Group's principal market risks are exposures to changes in interest rates and foreign exchange rates, which arise both
from the Sky Group's sources of finance and its operations. Following evaluation of those market risks, the Sky Group selectively
enters into derivative financial instruments to manage these exposures. The principal instruments currently used are interest rate
swaps to hedge interest rate risks, and cross currency swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge transactional and
translational currency exposures.
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24. Financial risk management objectives and policies

Market risk

The following table sets out the maturity profile and average interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates of the hedging
instruments used in the Company's hedging strategies:

0 - 6 Months 6 - 12 Months
Beyond 12

Months
At 31 December 2021
Cash flow hedges
Foreign Currency risk
Forward Currency Contracts (GBP:EUR)
Notional Amount (£m) 113 56 50
Average exchange rate to GBP 1.15 1.10 1.10

═══════ ═══════ ═══════
At 31 December 2020
Cash flow hedges
Foreign Currency risk
Forward Currency Contracts (GBP:EUR)
Notional Amount (£m) 131 115 235
Average exchange rate to GBP 1.17 1.16 1.12

═══════ ═══════ ═══════

The following table represents the corresponding carrying values and nominal amounts of derivatives in a continued hedge
relationship:

Nominal
Amount
of the
hedging
Instrument

Carrying amount of
the hedging
Instrument Line item

in the
statement
of financial
position
where the
hedging

instrument
is located

Other Comprehensive Income
Hedge

ineffective-
ness

recognised
in

financing
(income) /
costs

Assets Liabilities

Opening
Balance
1 Jan 2021

(Gain) /
Loss

deferred
to OCI

Gain/(Loss)
recycled to
revenue

Closing
Balance

31
December

2021

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Cash Flow Hedges
Foreign Currency risk

Forward
exchange
contracts 220 11 -

Derivative
Financial
Asset and
Derivative
Financial
Liabilities 14 (26) 1 (11) -
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Market risk (continued)

Nominal
Amount
of the
hedging
Instrument

Carrying amount of
the hedging
Instrument Line item

in the
statement
of financial
position
where the
hedging

instrument
is located

Other Comprehensive Income
Hedge

ineffective-
ness

recognised
in

financing
(income) /
costs

Assets Liabilities

Opening
Balance 1
Jan 2020

(Gain) /
Loss

deferred
to OCI

Gain/(Loss)
recycled to
revenue

Closing
Balance 31
December

2020

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Cash Flow Hedges
Foreign Currency risk

Forward
exchange
contracts 480 1 (15)

Derivative
Financial
Asset and
Derivative
Financial
Liabilities (18) 27 5 14 -

The following table represents the changes in value of hedging instrument and hedged item for calculating hedge ineffectiveness:

Hedging
Instrument

Change in value of hedging
instrument for calculating

hedge ineffectiveness

Change in value of hedged
item for calculating hedge

ineffectiveness
£m £m

At 31 December 2021
Cash Flow Hedges
Foreign exchange risk
EUR Receivables Forward Contracts (26) 26
At 31 December 2020
Cash Flow Hedges
Foreign exchange risk
EUR Receivables Forward Contracts 27 (27)

Capital Risk Management

The capital structure of the Company consists of equity attributable to equity holders of the parent company, comprising issued
capital, reserves and retained earnings. Risk and treasury management is governed by Comcast Corporation's policies approved
by its Board of Directors.

Liquidity risk

The Company relies on the Group Treasury function to manage its liquidity and ensure that sufficient funds are available for
ongoing operations and future developments. The Group currently has access to a cash pooling arrangement and a £6 billion
revolving credit facility with its ultimate parent, Comcast Corporation, which is due to expire in 2027. The Company benefits from
this liquidity through intra-group facilities and loans.

The Company's financial liabilities are shown in notes 20, 21 and 22 .
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24. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The following table analyses the Company's non-derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings, based on the
remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date.

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. These amounts may therefore not reconcile to the
liabilities disclosed on the Balance Sheet.

Less than 12
months

Between one
and two years

Between two
and five years Total

£m £m £m £m
At 31 December 2021
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade and other payables (685) - - (685)
Gross settled derivatives
Asset Outflow 170 50 - 220

Inflow (178) (55) - (233)

Less than 12
months

Between one
and two years

Between two
and five years Total

£m £m £m £m
At 31 December 2020
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 800 3 - 803
Gross settled derivatives
Asset Outflow - 73 54 127

Inflow - (75) (55) (130)
Liability Outflow 245 107 - 352

Inflow (235) (104) - (339)

Credit risk

The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk on trade receivables is the carrying amounts as disclosed in note 19.

Foreign exchange risk

At 31 December 2021, the Company had outstanding commitments to sell, in aggregate, €262million (2020: €536million) at an
average rate of €1.12 to £1.00 (2020: €1.14 to £1.00).

Foreign exchange sensitivity

The following analysis details the Company's sensitivity to movements in pounds sterling and against all currencies in which it has
significant transactions. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated financial instruments and
adjusts their translation at the year-end for a 25% change in foreign currency rates.

 A 25% strengthening in pounds sterling against the Euro would have the effect of increasing profit by £6 million (2020:
adverse impact on profit of £2 million). The same move would have a beneficial impact on other equity of £44 million
(2020: beneficial impact on other equity of £96 million).

 A 25% weakening in pounds sterling against the Euro would have the effect of reducing profit by £10 million (2020:
beneficial impact on profit of £3 million). The same move would have an adverse impact on other equity of £73 million
(2020: adverse impact on other equity of £160 million).

The sensitivity analyses provided are a plausible approximation of movements in a year. They are hypothetical only and should be
used with caution as the impacts provided are not necessarily indicative of the actual impacts that would be experienced because
the Company's actual exposure to market rates is constantly changing as the Company's portfolio of debt, foreign currency and
equity contracts changes.

In addition, the effect of a change in a particular market variable on fair values or cash flows is calculated without considering
interrelationships between the various market rates or mitigating actions that would be taken by the Company. The changes in
valuations are estimates of the impact of changes in market variables and are not a prediction of future events or anticipated gains
or losses.
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24. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Foreign exchange sensitivity (continued)

During the year the Company has not early adopted any matters in relation to interest rate benchmark reform. The treasury
function of the Sky Group is in the process of reviewing the implications of this reform (with changes effective during 2022) and its
impact on loan balances held by the Company. All loans which are based on LIBOR or other rates which will not be available are
scheduled to be moved to a comparable rate in 2022 as part of the implementation of the interest rate benchmark reform.

25. Share capital

2021 2021 2020 2020
Number £ Number £

Authorised, called-up and fully paid
Ordinary shares of £1.00 each 5 5 5 5

The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carries equal voting rights and no contractual right to receive payment.

Share option and contingent share award schemes

The Company operates various equity-settled share option schemes (the "Schemes") for certain employees, using shares in the
Company's ultimate parent company, previously Sky Limited and now Comcast Corporation. After the acquisition of the Sky Group
by Comcast Corporation on 9 October 2018, the previous share schemes operated by Sky were settled. New awards were granted
under the Restricted Stock Units schemes operated by Comcast Corporation.

The awards outstanding can be summarised as follows:

Scheme

2021
Number of
ordinary
shares

2020
Number

of ordinary
shares

Sharesave Scheme options (i) 1,197,045 987,624
Comcast Corporation RSU awards (ii) 59,801 201,292

─────── ───────
1,256,846 1,188,916

═══════ ═══════

(i) Sharesave Scheme options

All Sharesave Scheme options outstanding at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 have no performance criteria attached,
other than the requirement that the employee remains in employment with Sky. Options granted under the Sharesave Scheme are
to be exercised within six months of the relevant award vesting date.

The Sharesave Scheme is open to all employees. Options are normally exercisable after either three or five years from the date of
grant. The price at which options are offered is not less than 80% of the middle-market price on the dealing day immediately
preceding the date of invitation.

(ii) Comcast Corporation RSU awards

All awards outstanding at 31 December 2021 and at 31 December 2020 vest provided that on the vesting date the grantee is and
has from the date of the grant continuously been an employee of the Company or a Subsidiary Company during the restricted
period.

Share option and contingent share award schemes

For the purposes of the disclosure below, the previous Management LTIP, LTIP, Management Co-Investment LTIP, Co-Investment
LTIP awards, together with the Comcast Corporation RSU awards and Management Special Incentive awards ('Senior
Management Schemes') have been aggregated.
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Share option and contingent share award schemes (continued)

The movement in share awards outstanding is summarised in the following table:

Sharesave Scheme

Senior
Management
Schemes Total

Number of
shares under

option

Weighted
average

exercise price

Number of
shares under

option

Number of
shares under

option

Weighted
average

exercise price
Number £ Number Number £

Outstanding at 1 January 2020 725,970 27.26 253,604 979,574 20.20
Granted during the year 291,552 27.39 75,540 367,092 21.75
Expired during the year (29,898) 27.26 - (29,898) 27.26

Vested during the year - - (127,852) (127,852) -
─────── ─────── ─────── ─────── ───────

Outstanding at 31 December 2020 987,624 27.30 201,292 1,188,916 22.68
═══════ ═══════ ═══════ ═══════ ═══════

Granted during the year 211,950 33.31 60,141 272,091 25.95
Vested during the year - - (120,589) (120,589) -
Forfeited during the year (2,529) 27.26 (81,043) (83,572) 0.83

─────── ─────── ─────── ─────── ───────
Outstanding at 31 December 2021 1,197,045 28.36 59,801 1,256,846 27.01

═══════ ═══════ ═══════ ═══════ ═══════

The weighted average market price of Comcast's shares at the date RSU awards vested during the year was £41.53 (2020:
£33.75).

The following table summarises information about share awards outstanding at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020:

Sharesave Scheme
Senior Management

Schemes Total
2021 2021

Weighted
average
remaining

contractual life

2021 2021
Weighted
average
remaining

contractual life

2021 2021
Weighted
average
remaining

contractual life
Range of Exercise Prices Number years Number years Number years
£0.00 - £1.00 - - 59,801 0.15 59,801 0.15
£27.00 - £34.00 1,197,045 1.94 - - 1,197,045 1.94

─────── ─────── ─────── ─────── ─────── ───────
1,197,045 1.94 59,801 0.15 1,256,846 1.86

═══════ ═══════ ═══════ ═══════ ═══════ ═══════
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Share option and contingent share award schemes (continued)

The following table summarises information about share awards outstanding at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020
(continued):

Sharesave Scheme Senior management schemes Total
2020 2020

Weighted
average
remaining

contractual life

2020 2020
Weighted
average
remaining

contractual life

2020 2020
Weighted
average
remaining

contractual life
Range of Exercise Prices Number years Number years Number years
£0.00 - £1.00 - - 201,292 0.91 201,292 0.91
£27.00 - £28.00 987,624 2.63 - - 987,624 2.63

─────── ─────── ─────── ─────── ─────── ───────
987,624 2.63 201,292 0.91 1,188,916 2.34

═══════ ═══════ ═══════ ═══════ ═══════ ═══════

Information for awards granted during the year

The weighted average fair value of equity-settled share options granted during the year, as estimated at the date of grant, was
£14.64 (2020: £13.29). This was calculated using the Black-Scholes share option pricing model except for awards which have
market-based performance conditions, where a Monte-Carlo simulation model was used, and for grants of nil-priced options, which
were treated as the award of a free share. The fair value of nil-priced options granted during the period was measured on the basis
of the market-price of Comcast's shares on the date of grant, discounted for expected dividends which would not be received over
the vesting period of the options.

Expected volatility was determined by calculating the historical volatility of Comcast's share price, over a period equal to the
expected life of the options. Expected life was based on the contractual life of the options and adjusted, based on management's
best estimate, for the effects of exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations.

Weighted average fair value assumptions

Sharesave scheme

The weighted average fair value of equity-settled share awards granted during the year under the Sharesave Scheme, as
estimated at the date of grant, was £7.69 (2020: £8.13). This was calculated using the Black-Scholes share option pricing model.

The following weighted average assumptions were used in calculating these fair values:

2021 2020
Share price £37.39 £33.79
Exercise price £33.31 £27.39
Expected volatility 25.9% 25.9%
Expected life 3.5 years 3.4 years
Expected dividend 2.1% 2.1%
Risk-free interest rate 0.2% 0.2%

═══════ ═══════

Senior management schemes

The weighted average fair value of equity-settled share awards granted during the year under the Senior Management Schemes,
as estimated at the date of grant, was £39.16 (2020: £33.19). The fair value of awards with market-based performance conditions
was calculated using a Monte-Carlo simulation model. Awards granted as nil-priced options were treated as the award of a free
share. For all other awards, fair value was calculated using the Black-Scholes share option pricing model.

The following weighted average assumptions were used in calculating these fair values:

2021 2020
Share price £39.16 £33.20
Expected life 3.0 years 3.0 years
Risk-free interest rate 0.1% 0.8%

═══════ ═══════



48 SKY SUBSCRIBERS SERVICES LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

26. Shareholders' equity

2021 2020
  £m £m
Share capital - -
Share premium 150 150
Hedging reserve 10 (13)
Retained earnings 690 648

─────── ───────
850 785

═══════ ═══════

Hedging reserve

Changes in the fair values of derivatives that are designated as cash flow hedges are initially recognised in the hedging reserve, to
the extent that the hedges are effective. Amounts accumulated in the hedging reserve are subsequently recognised in the Income
Statement in the periods in which the related hedged items are recognised in the Income Statement. In addition, deferred tax
relating to these derivatives is also initially recognised in the hedging reserve prior to transfer to the Income Statement.

27. Notes to the Cash Flow Statement

Reconciliation of profit before tax to cash generated from operations

2021 2020
£m £m

Profit before tax 49 87
Depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment 6 6
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets 41 39
Depreciation and impairment of right-of-use assets 6 6
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment - 1
Impairment of investment - 8
Investment income - (9)

─────── ───────
102 138

─────── ───────
Decrease/(increase) in other receivables 56 (84)
Decrease in inventories - 1
Decrease in trade and other payables (135) (18)
(Decrease)/Increase in provisions (3) 9

─────── ───────
Cash generated from operations 20 46

═══════ ═══════
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28. Contracted commitments, contingencies and guarantees

a) Future minimum expenditure contracted for but not recognised in the financial statements

Less than
1 year

Between 1 and
5 years

After
5 years

Total at 31
December 2021

Total at 31
December 2020

  £m £m £m £m £m
Third party payments 11 5 - 16 27
Smartcards 3 5 - 8 91
Other - - - - 3

─────── ─────── ─────── ─────── ───────
Total 14 10 - 24 121

═══════ ═══════ ═══════ ═══════ ═══════

a) Contingencies and guarantees

The following guarantees are in place relating to the Sky Group's borrowings: (a) the Company, Sky UK Limited, Sky Group
Finance Limited, Sky Telecommunications Services Limited, Sky CP Limited ("Sky CP") and Comcast Corporation have given joint
and several guarantees in relation to the outstanding Guaranteed Notes issued by Sky Limited; (b) the Company, Sky UK Limited,
Sky Limited, Sky CP Limited, Sky Telecommunications Services Limited and Comcast Corporation have given joint and several
guarantees in relation to the outstanding Guaranteed Notes issued by Sky Group Finance Limited.

29. Transactions with related parties

a) Key management

The Company has a related party relationship with the Directors of the Company. At 31 December 2021, there were 4 (2020: 3)
members of key management who were Directors of the Company. The Directors did not receive any remuneration during the year
in respect of their services to the Company (2020: £nil).

b) Transactions with the parent company and other Group companies

The Company conducts business transactions with the parent company and other Group companies:

  2021 2020
  £m £m

Supply of services by the Company to the parent 492 519
Supply of services by the Company to other Group companies 6 8

═══════ ═══════

For details of amounts owed by and owed to the parent company and other Group companies, see notes 19 and 20.

Principal services supplied to the parent company and other Group companies:

- Subscriber management services

- Conditional access services

The Group's treasury function is responsible for liquidity management across the Group's operations. It is standard practice for the
Company to lend and borrow cash to and from the parent company and other Group companies as required. Under this policy, Sky
UK Limited has settled liabilities of £439 million (2020: £456 million) on behalf of the Company during the year. For details of
amounts owed by subsidiaries, see note 19.

c) Derivative contracts with Sky UK Limited

Sky UK Limited took out a number of derivative contracts with counterparty banks during the year on behalf of the Company. On
the same dates as these derivative contracts were entered into, the Company entered into equal and opposite contracts with Sky
UK Limited in respect of these derivative contracts.

The face value of the derivative contracts that had not matured as at 31 December 2021 was £220 million (2020: £480 million).

During the year, £235 million (2020: £301 million) was received from Sky UK Limited upon maturity of derivative contracts and
€274 million (2020: €332 million) was paid to Sky UK Limited upon maturity of derivative contracts.
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30. Ultimate parent undertaking

The Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary undertaking of Sky UK Limited, (the immediate parent company), a company
incorporated in the United Kingdom and registered in England and Wales. The Company’s ultimate parent company and the
largest group in which the results of the Company are consolidated is Comcast Corporation, a company incorporated in the United
States of America and registered in Pennsylvania.

The Company is ultimately controlled by Comcast and operates together with Comcast’s other subsidiaries, as a part of the
Comcast Group. The only group in which the results of the Company are consolidated is that headed by Comcast.

The consolidated financial statements of the Comcast Group are available to the public and may be obtained from Company
Investor Relations at Comcast Corporation, One Comcast Center, Philadelphia, PA 19103, USA. Or at
:https://www.cmcsa.com/investors.

31. Restatement note

In preparing financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021, the classification of intercompany receivable balances
between current and non-current was reassessed with reference to the timing of their expected settlement. In doing so, it was
identified that certain intercompany balances were incorrectly classified as current in prior years. This classification error is a
material error in prior periods and therefore the 2020 and 2019 balances have been restated in the 2021 financial statements.

The impact on the prior-year balances are as follows:

2020
As previously stated

2020
Adjustment

2020
Restated balance

£m £m £m

Intercompany receivables from parent
company - Current

1,093 (1,093) -

Intercompany receivables from parent
company - Non-current

- 1,093 1,093

Intercompany receivables from other
group companies - Current

232 (45) 187

Intercompany receivables from other
group companies - Non-current

- 45 45

2019
As previously stated

2019
Adjustment

2019
Restated balance

£m £m £m

Intercompany receivables from parent
company - Current

1,147 (1,147) -

Intercompany receivables from parent
company - Non-current

- 1,147 1,147

Intercompany receivables from other
group companies - Current

115 (45) 70

Intercompany receivables from other
group companies - Non-current

- 45 45

https://www.cmcsa.com/investors

